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DESCRIBE THE PARESENT AND ORIGINAL (/{ known) PRYS(CAL APPEARANCE

The Botetourt County Court House is a three-part composition consisting of .
a tall two-story, temple-form center section flanked by low two-story wings.
Designed in a provincial Greelk Revival style, the center section is fronted
by a tetrastyle Greek Doric portico of unfluted stucco columns supporting a
plain entablature and pediment. The wings are covered by shallow hipped
roofs, and the two bays of each wing are framed by pilasters supporting an
entablature similar in form but smaller in scale to that on the center
section. The first and second floor windows of the wings are treated as
single units, having cight-over-eight lower sash and four-over-four upper
sash with unornamented panels.between. The lower sections of the inner
windows in each of the wings, however, have been converted into doors.

The first floor windows in the center section are treated in similar form
as those of the wings. The upper sash of these windows apparently were
originally intended to light jury rooms in the gallery.

Until the recent fire the apex of thébrddf was tdpﬁeé by a square belfry
with coupled pilastres at the corners and a clock face on all four sides.
Crowning the belfry was a shallow dome out of which projected a short
hexagonal spire topped by a weather vane in the form of an arrow.

All of the court house's architectural details are either whitewashed wood
or stucco, and thus stand out in strong contrast to the red brick walls.
The walls are laid in very even Flemish bond which is accented by penciled
joints. The original exterior form of the building is interrupted by three
principal additions: a vault room behind the west wing, and two vault rooms
behind the east wing or clerk's office.

. - . P ~ - N s = '
The interioy 'of the center section , as originally built ) contained a high
ceiling court room on the first flooxr level. The bench for this court room
was o the nortli wall, directly opposite the front door. One apparently
entered the court room beneath a gallery that contained jury rooms fronted
by a Balcony. "This gallery seems to have been reached by two straight
flightsof stairs located against the side walls. It is uncertain how the
floor level above the court room was divided or used.

The original interior scheme was completely reversed in 1918 during a
remodeling of the building designed by a Roanoke architect, G. R. Ragan.

The first floor became a low ceiling space divided into offices on either sid

of a central corridor. The new second floor level containing a high ceiling
court room was reached by a wide stair opposite the entrance. The bench of
this new court room was directly over the front door. The interior of the
wings also were remodelled in 1918, thus leaving little if any original
interior trim in the building. The 1918 interior of the center sectionm,

as well as the original roof framing was completely destroyed by the fire
of December 1970, Plans are being made to rebuild the interior of the
building and return it to a functioning court house. :
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The present Botetourt Coﬁnty Céurt House in Fincastle postdates two

earlier courthouse buildings. The first court house, completed in 1773,
was replaced around 1818 by a more substantial building erected accoxding
to drawings and instructions provided by Thomas Jefferson. A design for a
new court house was requested of Mr. Jefferson by his friend James
Breckenridge, a leading citizen of Botetourt County. Although Jefferson's
drawings do not survive, their one time existence is confirmed by a letter
from Jefferson to Breckinridge dated October 6, 1818, where Jefferson stated
that he had found time to complete the drawings and that he was forwarding
them by mail 'with the explanations accompanying them.' The second
Botetourt court house and the Buckingham court house are thus:: - .
the only court bouses documented to have been designed by Jefferson.

Apparently the secoud court house was too small to accommodate all the
necessary administrative fuunctions for so large a county as Botetourt, for
| in 1845°a committeeé was appointed to contract for the building .of a new-
court house on the site of the existing one. The second court house was
'‘thus demolished and the construction of the present one was begun that

same year, with completion being achieved three years later. It has been a
long-standing tradition in the county that because the general external -
appearance of the Jeffersonlan court house was so much admired, the layout
of the present building (central temple-form section flanked by low wings)
was based on it,

(
However closely it may have resembled its predecessor the present court
house is a most competent essay in provincal Greek Revival design, and
is an important componant in Virginia's notable collection of ante beéllum
court houses. It is also one of Virginia's largest court houses of its
type and period. Further research may show that its chief builder,
Schuylexr W. Smith of Bedford, was responsible for the design of sigunificant
Greek Revival houses and churches in the DBedford and Botetourt area, since
many of these buildings have strong architectural parallels to the court
house. .

Until it was gutted by fire in December 1970, the court house with its
imposing poxtico, belfry and spire, was the architectural focal point for
one of Virginia‘s most picturesque communities. Although the destruction
of the interior is regrettable in the extreme, the fire destroyed little
of architectural significance except for the roof and belfry, since nearly

}

all interior fabric dated from the 1918 remodeling. The original walls
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8. and columns survived with little irreparable damage, and it 1s intended to
install a new interior within them and to restore the exterior to its
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